SREC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Welspun Flooring Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Welspun Flooring Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Siatement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes te the financial statements,
inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March

31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accerdance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Aci and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As further explained in note 37 of the financial statements, during the year the Company has
revisited the accounting of the Government Grant receivable and corresponding deferred income, in
respect of one-time capital subsidy, reimbursement of land cost and stamp duty. Accordingly, in the
comparative period for the year ended March 31, 2020 the Company has adjusted / reduced the
Government grant receivable (grouped under ‘other non-current financial assets') and corresponding
deferred income (grouped under ‘other no-current liabilities’) by Rs. 1,085.86 million.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the Annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing seo, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financizl statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wili always detect a materiaf misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to confinue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentafion, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scape and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

Report on Other Legaf and Regqulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order'™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" & statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Seclion 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conirols with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer to our separate
Repeort in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided during the year and hence the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term coniracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
1ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Numhber: 110759
UBIN: 21110759AAAACF1061
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on other legal and requlatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Welspun Floering Limited

(i) (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

() According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of the
Company, except for land aggregating to Rs. 409.56 mitlion for which the Company
had entered into an agreement for sale with Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation (TSHC). As explained o us, the Company Is in the process of executing
the sale deed with TSIIC.

(i The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any foans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited lability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3dii)(a), {b) and {c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no oans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not
commented upon.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 t0 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vid We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture yarn
and carpet products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.
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(vii) (@) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service {ax, cess and other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
heen a slight delay in a few cases.

(b> According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of
custom, goeds and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were oufstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, customs duty and goods & service tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

i in our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has noi defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
banks. There were no dues payable to debenture halders during the year. The Company
has not taken any loan or borrowing from financial institution or government.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the
purposes for which they were raised. No money has been raised by way of initial public
offer / further public offer /debt instruments.

(¢3] Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no material fraud
on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

Cxi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided during the year and hence the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(xii) inour opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the detzils have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the preferential allotment or private placement of shares and fully
convertible debentures. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for
which the funds were raised.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred {o in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
]
m
Partner
Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 21110759AAAACF1061

Place of Signature: Mumbal
Date: May 12, 2021
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Annexure 2 to the independent auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of
Weispun Flooring Limited

Report on the Internal Financizal Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Welspun Flooring Limited
("the Company'™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining iniernal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controis that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audif. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the exteni applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, beth
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbiain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such conirols operated
effectively in all material respecis.

Our audif involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control hased on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
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financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasconable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinien, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statementis were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nofe on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
1ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

K/@W“’\"‘i_

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 21110759AAAACF1061
Place of Signature; Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

SALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and eauipment
Capital work«in-progress
Intancibie assels

Right-of-usa assels

Financial Assets

- Other financial assels
Non-current tax assets
Othar Non Currant assels
Total Non Cumrent Assets

Current assets

inventories

Financial Assels

- Trade Raceivables

- Cash & cash equivalents

- Bank balances other than 8 (&) above
-~ Other financial assets

Other current assets

‘Total Current Assets

Total Assels
EQUITY AND LAABILITIES

Eaquity
Eaquity share capilal
Instruments entirely equity in nature
8% Compulsorily Convertitle Preference Share Capital
0% Compulsarily Convertible debentures
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Total equity

LIABILITIES
Hon- current liabilities
Financials Liabilities

- Borrowings

- Lease liabilities
Deffered Tax fiabilities {Net}
Other non- cument lizbifties
Total non-current liabifities

Current Eabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Berrowlinns
- Lease liabilities
- Trade Payables
(a) Total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt
enlerprses
{b) Total cutstanding dues of craditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
- Cther financial Fabilites
Current tax liabilties
Current Emplovee Benefits Obliqations
Other current fiabilities
Total Current llabilities

Total Liabilities

Tatal Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant account policles

The Accarnpanying notes are an Integral part af these financial stalemeants

*Restated (Refer note 37)

As per our raport of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP

Chartered Accaunlanis

IGA! Firm registration number : 324982E/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra
Pariner
Membershin No. 110759

Place: Mumbai
[ate; May 12, 2021

Note No.
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12 {b}

16

hanciai Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021

As at
March 31, 2021
[Rs. in Miliion}

As at
March 31, 2020
[Rs. in Milllon}*

8,753.56 9.189.62
1,067.72 330.95
42.04 3356
5.64 946
583.96 343.81
101 1.83
197,82 160.00
10,651.75 §,069,23
1,161.86 68245
850.62 -
120,85 332
408.62 2.53
444.05 123.63
547.72 506,27
3,534.03 1,318.20
14,185.78 10,387.43
650.00 £50,00
1,850.00 1,860,00
3,495.41 714,38
(1.652.75) (919.22)
4,343.66 3,295,16
6,846.29 6,313.64
2.70 577
4,88 4,88
352,97 262.83
7,206.84 6,587.12
350,63 271.08
3.07 3.84
62.47 61.19
1,332.53 515.01
490,94 518,16
3.08 308
113.46 25.23
269.10 106.55
2,635.28 1,505.15
5,842.12 8,062.27
14,185,786 i0,387.43

For and en behalf of the Board of Directors

shikant Therat
Company Secretary

CEQ & Whole Time Director
DIN: 68163008




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Nate No. March 31, 2021 #arch 31, 2020

{Rs. in Million} (Rs. in Million)
Revenue from Operations 17 3.628.63 552.20
Oher income 18 161.76 045
Tutal Revenue 3,791.38 552.65

Expenses
Raw matertals incuding packaging maierials consumed 18 251021 637.58
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Semifinishad goods 20 (221.22) (338.52}
Employee bencfils expense 2% 575.35 276.04
Depreciation and amorlization expense 22 /1712 231.08
Other expensas 23 7B4.04 367.2C
Financa costs 24 360.78 204.52
Total expenses 4,528,39 4,397.8%
Het Loss before Tax {735.00) {B45.24)
Ineome Tax Expense
- Current Tax - -

- Deffered Tax - -
Total income Tax Exgense 25 - -
Net Loss for the Year {735.00) (845,24}
Other Comprehensive Incoma
terms 1hat wilk not ba reclassified 1o profit or loss

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation Galn/(Loss} 147 {5.72)

Other comprehensive incomef{ioss) for the year, net of tax 1,47 {5.72)
Total Cemprehensive Income for the year (733.53) [250,95)
Eatnings Per Share (Rs.) {Naminal value per share : Rs. 10 (March 33
31,2020 : Rs. 10)]

- Besic {1.76} (8.10)

- Diluted {1.78) (8.16)
Summary of signilicant account policies 2
The Accompanying noles are ar integral pad of these financia! statements
As per our repert of even date
FarSRECA&CULLP Far and on behalf f the Board of Directors
Charered Accountants
|CAI Firm registration number ; 324982E/E300003

-t

Per Anll Jebanputra
Pariner
Membership No, 110738

DIN: 05166241

hikant Thorat

Company Secrelary
Place: Mumbal

Date: May 12, 2021

Flace: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021

Mukesh Sawatani
CEC & Whole Time Director
DIN: 08163006
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2021

WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020*
(Rs. Million} (Rs. Miflion)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss Before Tax {735.00} (845.24)
Adjustments for :
Bepreciation and amorlisation expenses 5i7.12 231.05
Income from gavemment grant (280,47} {136.07)
Unrealised foreign exch diffe (97.58) 22.26
Finance expenses 360.78 204.53
(Profit} } Loss on Redemptionf Safes of Mutual Fund - 015
Interest income (0.83) {5.45)

488.02 32147
Operating Profit Before Working Capitaj Changes {235.98) {52377}
Adjustmeants far changes In working capital ¢
{Increase) in trade receivable {650.62) -
Increase in trade payables 819.80 472.53
Increase in employes benefit obligalions B9.69 T.68
Increase in other financial fiabilities (50,96} 26.81
Increase ! (Decrease) in other liabifities {47.31) 32351
{Increase} in other current assels {41.45} (412,58)
{Increase) in invemories {479.41) (682.45)
(Increase} in other financlal assels {394.73) {315.42}

(950.5%) (579.82)
Cash Flow Generated from Operations {1,186.87} (+.103.83)
tncome fax paid 0.82 {0.38)
Nat Cash Inflow from / {used In] Qparating Activitles {1,186.15) (1,104.07}

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of preperty, plant and equip capital work-in-progress and intangible assets (1,913,68) 13,152.47)
Receipt of government grant 293.03 .
Proceeds from fixed deposit / Margin money (26,83} 2.36
Inferast received .83 0.48
Net Cash outflow used In Investing Activities {1,645.75) {3,£43.63)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds rom Issue of Preference share capitat - 147.82
Proceeds from Issue of Compulsary Govertible Debentures 1,257.08 691.38
Praceeds from short term borrowings ** (net) 1,604.5¢ 294.09
Proceeds from fong term borrowings 852.02 3,505.08
Repayment of Lang-term: Borzowings {74.42) -
Payment of lzase iiabilities (3.83) {2.02}
interest paid {724.81) 1457.03)
Nat Cash inflow from Financing Actlvities. 2,850.54 4,178.43
Mot Increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 147.64 69.27)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 332 72.58
Cash and Cash Eguivalants at the end of the year 120.96 3.32
Met increase { {decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalants 117.64 (69.27}




Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand
Bank balances

- In turzent accounts

- In Fixed Deposit less than 3 months
‘Total

WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

**Short term borowing of Rs. 1524.96 Million (March 31, 2020; Rs. 23 Milion) was converted to 0% Compulserily Convertible Debentures.

Change in Liability arising from financing activities

Borrowing-Non Current tRefer Note 11 {a)]

Borrowing-Current [Refer Note 11 (a}]

Notes:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 tarch 31, 2020

{Rs. Miillion} (Rs. Milllon)
- 004
20.96 3.31

100.00 -

12096 3.32
{Rs. Million}
April 4, 2020 Cash flow Other adjustments Mareh 31, 2021
§,317.89 817.60 {83.57) 719192
271.08 1,604.50 {1,524.96) 350.63
6,648.98 242240 (1,608.53) 1.462.85

1, Other adjusiment perlains o amoriisation of ransaction costs of Rs. 5.48 Millions incurred on borrewings over the tenure of the loan using the effective inferest rata method, paymant of

transactions cost of Rs. B Million and unrealised forex gain an USD loan of Rs. 83.57 Million.

2, Other adjustments pertains to canversion of foan into 0% Compulscrily Convertible Debentures
3. The stalement of cash flows has baen prepared under the indirect melhod as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statemant of cash flows,

*Reslaled (Refer note 37)

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these financial statemenls

As per our report of aven date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 3248982E/2300003

Per Anll Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

Director
DiN: 00007199 DiN: 05166241

hashikant Thorat
Chief Firfancial Otficer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Dale: May 12, 2021

-
Mukesh Sawalani
CED & Whole Time Director
DIN : 38168008




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021t

a. Equity Share Capital

(Rs.Million}
Particulars Notes No. of Shaves Amount
As at March 31, 2019 10{a) 65,000,000 $50.00
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2420 65,006,000 650.06
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 65,000,004 850.60
b. Instruments entirely equity In nature
i. 8% Non Cumulative Compulsorily convertible (NCCC) Preference shates (Rs.Milliony
Particulars Notes No. of Shares Amount
As at March 31, 2019 10(b) 170,218,385 4.702.18
Thanges in 8% NCG preference share capital during the year 14,781,615 147.82
As at March 31, 2020 185,600,600 1.850.00
Changaa in 8% NCU preference share capito! during the yeer -
As at March 31, 2021 185,000,000 1,850.00
jl. 0% Compulserily copvertible Bebentures {Rs.Mitlion)
Particulars Notes No. of Debkantt Amount
As at March 31, 2019 10{c) - -
Changes in Compulsorily Convertibde Debenture during the year 71,438,385 714,38
As at March 31, 2020 71,438,385 714,38
Changes in Compulsarily Convertible Debenture during the year 278,202,659 2,782,03
As at March 31, 2021 340,641,044 3,496.41
d, Other Equity
{Rs.Million)
Reserve & surplus/ .
Particulars Notes Retained Eamnings Total Other Equity
As at Aprill.2019 10{d) {68.26) {68.26)
Loss for the year {B435.24) (B45.24)
Other Comprehensive loss (5.72) {5.72)
Balances as at March 31, 2020 (919.22) {919,22)
L.oss for the year (735.00) {735.00)
QOther Comprehensive gain 1.47 a7
Balances as at March 31, 2621 {1,652.75) {1,652.75)

Summary of significant account policies

The Accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountanis
{CAI Firm registration number : 324982E/£300003

For and on bahalf of the Board of Dizectors

I

Per Anil JJobanputra
Partner
Membership Nao. 110759

Rajeskfandavewal;

Director 37
DiN: 00007178

" CEOQ & Whole Time Director
Din: 08165008

Place: Mumbai
Date; May 12, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Dale: Mav 12, 2021
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Corporate Information

Welspun Flooring Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company”) is a public limited company
domiciled in india and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India.
The registered office of the Company is located at D No. 6-3-609/147/A, Opposite Sri Chakra
Apartment, Anand Nagar Colony, Khairatabad, Hyderabad, Telangana — 500 004, India. The
Company is incorporated with its main objective to carry business of manufacturing and selling of
Carpet Tiles, Stone Polymer Composite Tiles and other Flooring Solutions. The Company had
commenced its operations and manufacturing with effect from September 13, 2019.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 12, 2021.

Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. The financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities that is measured at fair
value as stated in subsequent policies

Foreign currency translation
a. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in INR, which is also its functional
currency and all items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured
using the same functional currency.

b. Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated and recorded into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the franslation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at ysar end exchange rates are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange raies at the dates of initial transaction. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when confrol of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before fransferring them fo the customer.

Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.19.

Sale of goods

For sale of goods, revenue is recognized when control of the goods has transferred at a point in
time i.e. when the goods have been delivered to the specific location (delivery). Following deiivery,
the customer has full discretion over the responsibility, manner of distribution, price to sell the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognized by the Company when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. Payment is due within 0-180 days. The Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, non-cash consideration and consideration payable
to customer (if any).

Contract balances :

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Interest Income
Interest income from the financial assets are recognized using effective interest rate method.

Other Income
Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying
for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants related to
income are government grants other than those related to assets.

Government grants relating to an expense item are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended fo compensate and
presented either under “other operating income” (Revenue from operation) or are deducted in
reporting the related expense. The presentation approach is applied consistently to all similar
grants, Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Staternent of Profit and Loss over the periods
and in proportions in which depreciation expense on those assets is recognized.

Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other
comprehensive income respectively.

Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted, at the reporting date where the Company
operates and generates faxable income, Mamqgement periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect {o situations i in wh'ﬁ ol _able tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses,
depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
refiect changes in probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other
and the resultant net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when, (a} the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities,
and (b} the Deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That s,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured af cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of jease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets of 3 to 5 years:

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in Note 2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets,

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments). In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increasedto reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
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Property, plant and equipment

Property Plant and equipment except for freehold [and are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, and other taxes(other than
those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying
assets and any expected cost of decommissioning. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Export Promoticn Capital Goods (EPCG) grant relating to property, plant and equipment relate o
duty saved on import of capital goods and spares under the EPCG scheme. Under the scheme,
the Company is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on import of capital goods
over a specified period of time. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be
required to pay the duty saved along with interest to the regulatory authorities. Such grants are
initially recognized / added in the cost of underlying property, plant and equipment and a
corresponding liability which is released to the statement of profit and loss based on fulfiiment of
related export obligations.

Depreciation methods, estimated usefu! lives and residual value

Freehold land is not depreciated. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the
lease term.

For following items of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Assels Estimated Useful Life
(vears)
Plant & Machinery 5t0 15
Material Handling Equipment 1to0 12
Transmission lines, cables and other network assets 40
Office Equipment 3t05
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers and Servers 306
Vehicles 8
Electrical installation 5-10
Factory Building 30

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's
expert which is equal to or lower than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
in order to refiect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the
original cost of the asset. The asseis’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking
into account commercial and technelogical chsolescence as well as normal wear and {ear and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic bengfits are expected to arise from the-centinued use of asset. Gains and losses on
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss within other expenses or other income, as applicable.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortization methods and periods

Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortized on a straight-line basis over
its expected useful life over a period of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, fraded and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases
on weighted average basis. Cost of work-in progress and finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory moving weighted average basis. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

A. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s busmess model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows. e
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- For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income;

B. Initial Recognition and Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible ta known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
outstanding bank overdrait shown within current liabilities in statement of financial position and
which are considered as integral part of company's cash management policy.

Trade receivable

Trade receivable are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

C. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

i, Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-
off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount;

- For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 financial instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Financial liabilities
A. Initial Recognition and Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case
of financial liability not at fair vaiue through profit or loss), that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time of
initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease agreements are measured at the
lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of minimum lease payments.
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B. Subsequent Measurement

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility o which it relates.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are recognised, initially

at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method.

Derivatives and hedging activities
In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks,
the Company enters into forward, option, swap contracts and other derivative financial

instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

- Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

The Company enters into derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as
hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

212 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying asseis are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

213 Employee benefits

a. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b. Other long-ierm employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected fo be seftled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured
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as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss. The obligations
are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer setilement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardiess of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur.

¢. Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
- defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund and superannuation Fund

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans
is the present value of the defined benefit abligation at the end of the repotting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are
discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet. Remeasurements are not reclassified fo the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund, Employee State insurance Corporation (ESIC), Pension Fund and other
Social Security Funds

The Contribution towards provident fund, ESIC, pension fund and Social Security Funds for
certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does
not carry any further obligations apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Superannuation Fund
Contribution towards superannuation fund for certain employees is made to SBI Life Insurance
Company where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined
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Contribution Schemes as the Company dees not carry any further obligations, apart from
contribution made on monthly basis.

Bonus Plan

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Provisions and contingent fiabilities

Provisions for service warranties, volume discounts and returns are recognised when the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions for restructuring
are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the Company will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected
by it.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the
ongoing activities of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
fo settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or befare the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and exciuding
freasury shares. {Note 33)
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Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:
- the afier income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is;

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
@ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
millions with twe decimal as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Company’s accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements

Crifical estimates and judgements

i} Current tax expense and deferred tax
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The calculation of the Company’s tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and
judgement in respect of certain items whose {ax freatment cannot be finally determined until
resclution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal
legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give rise to material
profits/losses andfor cash flows. Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paidfrecovered for uncertain {ax
positions. (Refer Note 25)

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities

The recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it is more likely than
not that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference is
made 1o the latest available profit forecasts.

ii) Provisions & Contingent Liabilities.

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the
exposures to contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a
pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the
financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual
liability may be different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer Note 31).

iii} Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management
at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technclogy. For the relative size
of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer Notes 3 and 4).

iv) Provision for Inventory

The Company writes down inventories to net realisable value based on an estimate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of estimates of net selling prices, age and quality/condition of the down-
graded inventories. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of invenfories and write-downs of inventories in the

periods in which such estimate has been changed. Refer Note 7 for details of inventory and
provisions,

v) Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation

The present value of the defined benefit abligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of government bonds of
maturity approxmatlng the terms of the related plan liability. Refer Note 21 for the detalks of
v the assumptions used in estimating the defined benefit obligation.
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vi} Government Grants

The Company has accrued income for Government grant related to fixed assets, in the ratio
of related expenses, based on eligibility amount. Critical judgement is involved in determining
whether the Company has fulfilled the conditions related to the grant. Estimates are involved
in calculation of grant income where the eligibility amount is not confirmed by the government
but application is made and the Company is complying all terms & conditions for eligibility.
Further, key assumptions used in calculation of government grant to be recognized as
revenue, receivables and deferred income include, the future sales growth rate, mix of inter
and intra state purchases and corresponding input tax credit, utilization of input tax credit,
indirect tax rates on the products, period of eligibility etc. Changes in the assumptions selected
by the management could significantly affect the recognition of revenue, receivables and
deferred income related to such government grants.

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has adopted measures to curb the spread of infection of COVID 19 in
order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal
disruption including remote working, maintaining social distancing, sanitization of work
spaces etc. The Company's operations, revenue and consequently profit during the year
ended March 31, 2021 were impacted due to Covid-19. The Company has considered
the possible effects that may result from outbreak of COVID-19 in the preparation of this
financial results including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-
financial assets and liquidity assessment based on future cash flow projections. in
building the assumptions relating to the possible uncertainties in the global economic
conditions as at the date of approval of these financial results, the Company has used
internal and external sources of information and expects that the carrying amount of the
assets will be recovered. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of
issuance of the Company’s financial statements.
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 4 - Intangible assets

{Rs. Million)
Computer Intangible assets under
Software development

Cost or valuation
At Aprit 1, 2019
Opening gross carrying amount 7.20 13.73
Additions 30.50 -
Transfers/Capitalised - {13.73)
At March 31, 2020 (A) 37.70 -
Amortisation
At April 1, 2019
Opening accumulated amortisation 0.32 -
Amortisation charge during the year 3.57 -
Disposal / Transfer 0.25 -
At March 31, 2020 (B) 4.14 -
Net book value at March 31, 2020 (A-B) 33.56 -
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2020
Opening gross carrying amount 37.70 -
Additions 16.45 -
Disposal / Transfer - -
At March 31, 2021 (A} 54.15 -
Amortisation
At April 1, 2020
Opening accumulated amoeriisation 414 -
Amortisation charge during the year 7.97 -
Disposal / Transfer - -
At March 31, 2021 (B) 1211 -
Net book value at March 31, 2021 {A-B} 42,04 -
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MHote 5; Others Nopn Current Financial Assets
Government Grant Receivable

- Telangana Capital subsidy receivable (Refer Note 37)
- Tetengana SGST subsidy receivable

- Telengana Interest subsidy receivable

Securily Deposits fo Olhers

Note 6 : Other non-current assels
{Uneocurnd, caneldored good)
Capital Advances fo Others

Hota 7 : Inventories

Raw Materials [Inciuding material in transit of Rs. 154.84 Million (PY Rs. 85.42 Million)]
Work-in-Progress

Finished Goods

As At As At

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. Milion) (Rs, Million)
22,94 12.44

22756 -
307,70 31543
2696 15.94
583,956 343.81
197,82 160.00
157.82 160.00
602.12 34393
20323 238.75
356.51 99,77
1,161.86 682.45

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Rs, 24.02 Miliion (31 March 2020: Rs. 71,76 Million) was recognised as an expense for

inventories carried at net realisable valus.

Note 8{a) : Cash and eash eguivalents
Balances wilh Banks

- In current accounts

- in Fixed Deposit less than 3 menths
Cashi In Hand

Nete 8 (b} : Cther bank balances
Margin Money Deposil
Other Bank Balances

Note &(c) : Other financial assots

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposils

Governmenl Grant Receivable

- Telangana Capilal subsidy recelvable {Refer Note 37)
- Telengana SGST subsidy receivable

- Telengana interest subsidy recelvable

Derivative Financial Instruments

Mote 9 : Other current assets

Balances With Government Authorilies
Advance to Others

Advancs to Employees

Prepaid Expenses

20.96 3.31
100.00 -
- 0.4
120.96 3.32
2946 253
37938 -
408.82 2,53
0,34 -
1M.74 -
120.39 123.63
297.57 -
14.01 =
444.05 323.63
463.72 416.59
57.40 85.39
341 -
13,19 4.29
547,72 50627
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Note 10 : Equity share capital and other equity
10 (a) : Equity share capital

{i) Authorised equity share capitat

Amount
Number of Shares (Rs. Million)
As at March 31, 2018 55,000,000 650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 65,600,000 650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 65,000,000 650.00
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 10 each)
{ii) Movements in equity share capital (l.e. Issued / Subscribed & Fully Paid up share)
Amount
Mumber of Shares {Rs. Million)
As at March 31, 2019 65,000,000 650.00
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 65,000,000 650.00
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 65,000,000 650.00

Equity Shares of Rs. 16 each (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 10 each}

{iii) Shares held by holding company {Holding company as defined in Ind AS-24 : "Related Party Disclosure")

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of Shares Amount Number of Amount
{Rs. Million) Shares {Rs. Million)
Equity Shares :
Weispun India Limited £5,000,000 650.00 65,000,000 650.00
65,000,000 650.00 65,000,000 650.00

{iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Number of Shares % Number of %
Shares
Equity Shares :
Welspun india Limited 65,000,000 100.00 65,000,000 100.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has ane class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 10 per share (March 31, 2020 : Re, 10). Each shareholder is eligible for one volte per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible {o receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential,amounts, in

proportion o their shareholding.
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Note 10 {b} : B% Noa Cumulative Cempulsorily Converlible(NCCG} Preference Share capital

(i} Authorised Preference share capital

Number of Shares Amaount
{Rs.in Milllen)
As at March 31, 2019 185,000,000 1,850,00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 165,000,900 1,850.04
Increase during the yaar v -
As at March 31, 2021 185,000,000 1,850.00
{ii} Movements in Preference share capital (Lo, [ssued / Subscribed & Fully Pald up shara}
Humber of Shares Amount
{Rs.in Million}
As at March 31, 2019 170,248,385 1,702.18
Shares issued during the year 14,781,615 141.82
As at March 31, 2020 185,000,000 1,850,00
Shares issued during the yoear . .
As at March 31, 2021 185,000,000 1,850,00

8% Non Cumulative Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares of Re. 10 each (March 319, 2020 :
Re. 10 each fully paic up)

Terms & Rights Attached to Preference shares

8% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares hava a par value of Rs 10. They enlitle the halder to have a preferential right vis a vis Equily shares of the company, with respect o
payment of dividend and repayment in case of winding up of the company or repayment of capital, Preference shares shall carry voling rights as per Ihe provisions of Section 47(2) of the Act (Inctuding
any amendments cr Modifications there o). The preference shares shall be convertible in the ratic of 1:1 Le. 1 equily share for every 1 preference share held and the preference shares shail be

convertible at any time before May 18, 2037 at the oplion of the Company.

(iii) Shares held by holding company and suhsidiary of holding company (Holding campany as defined In Ind AS-24 : "Related Party Disclosure”}

As at March 31, 2021 As at Margh 31, 2020
Name Of Sharehelder Nember of Shares Amount Humber of Shares Amount
[Rs.in Billion ) {Rs.In Million }
8% NCGC Prefereace Shares of Rs 10 each Fully Paid-up:
Welspun India Limied 185.060.000 1.850.00 185.006.000 1.850.00
185,000,000 1,8506.00 185,000,000 1,850.00

(iv) Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name Of Shareholder Number of Shares % Humber of Shares %
8% NCCGC Preference Shares of Ra 10 each Fully Paid-up:
Welspun India Limited 185,000.00¢ 100 185,000,000 100

kS
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Note 10 {c} ; 0% Compulsorily Converible Debentures (CCD}

{i} Movements in 0% Compulserily Convetlible debentures

i Amount
Particulars Number of Shares (Rs.in Million
As at March 31, 2019 - -
Debentures issued during the year 71,438,385 714.38
As at March 31, 2020 71,438,385 714,38
Dehkentures issuad during the year 278,202,659 2.782.03
As at March 31, 2021 349,641,044 3,496.41

(it} Terms & Rights Attached to Convertible Debanfures

0% Compulsory Convertible Debentures have a par value of Rs 10 each. They entitle the holder to have a preferential right vis a vis Equily shares of lhe
company, repayment in case of winding up of the company or repayment of capital. Debentures do not carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 71(2} of
the Act {Including any amendments or Modifications there to) and the debeniures shali be converiible in the ratio of 1:1 i.e. 1 equity share for every 1 debenture
hetd on July 30, 2029 for ail ailolmenis to be made. CCDs may be converted into equity shares before July 30, 2029 al the option of the Company.

{iii} Debentures held by holding company and subsidiary of holding company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number of Shares (Rs?rr:];l'.illrl.liim ) Number of Shares (Rsfi\;n:ﬁl::;l':'in ]
0% Compulsorily Convertible debentures
Weispun India Limited 349.641,044 3.496.41 71,438,385 714.38
348,641,044 3,495.41 71,438,385 714.38

{iv} Detalls of Debentures held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Name Of Sharehelder Number of Shares % Number of Shares Yo
0% Compulsorily Convertible debentures
Welspun India Limifed 349,641,044 100 71,438,385 100
As at As at
Note 10(d} ; Other Equity BMarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. Million } {Rs. Million )
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (919.22) {68.26)
Add : Loss For the Year (735.00) {845.24)
Add: Other Comprehensive gain / (loss) 1.47 5.72)

Balance at the end of the year (1,652.75) {919.22)
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs.In Million {Rs.In Millicn )
Mota 11 {a} : Non-Current Berrowings
Particulars Terms Of Repayment Amount Amaount
Term Loans - From Banks
{Secured, Measured at Amertised Cost)
Rupee Term Loan is secured by First pari passu charge Repayable in 33 6,743.90 $,453.83
~aver immovable properiies/ assets of project, bath presant and future quarterly  instalmenls.
- on all present and fulure movable assels of the project including but not limited to plant and commencing from
machinery,machinery spares, toois and accessafies, fumilure, fixtures,vehicles, elc. Quarter ending March
- on all intangibles including but not kmited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future of the 2021,
Bomower Specific 1o the Project.
-~ charge on all accounts of the Borrower including but not imited 1o Escrow Accounts, [rust Reteation
account (TRA) and Debt Service Reserve account specific ta the Project.
-on all the Borrower's project rights, tilles.interest, benefits in the exisling and {uture Project decuments,
latter of credit, guarantee and insurance policies issued in favour of the Berrower Second pari passu
charge
-on tha borrower's bock debts, operating cash flows, receivables, « issions, of whatsoever,
nature and wherever anising, presenl ang fulure spacific io the Project,
Negative lien on 51% of total paid up equily shares as well as 51% of NCDs/CCDs/Sponsor sub debt ele.,
Welspun India Limiled, the holding company, has issued an irevocable and uncondilional corporata
guarantee valid for the tenure of the loan.
Bank of Baroda Term Loan of Rs 250 Cr was converied to FCNR loan of § 33,042,558.81 on 28.05.2020
for the period of 1 year.
Rupee Term Loan is secured by Firs{ pari passu charge Instalment Repayable in 33 369.58 -
- over immovable properties! assets of project, beth presant and future in  Quarer|quarterly  instalments
-con al p t and future hle assets of the project including but not imited io plani and March|commencing from:
machinary,machinety spares, fools and accessaries, fumiture, fixtures,vehicles, afc, Quarter ending March
« on all infangibles including but not fimited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future of the 2023,
Borrower Specific to the Project.
- charge on all accounts of the Borrower including but not limited to Escrow Acceunts, Trust Retenlien
accouni (TRA) and Debt Service Reserve account specific {e the Project.
«-on all the Borrower's project rights, tilles,interest, benefits in the existing and future Project documents,
lelter of credit, guarantee and insurance policies issued in faveur of the Borrower Second pas passu
charge
-on the borrower’s book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenue of whatsoever|
nature and whenaver arising, present and future specific to the Project,
MNegative lien on $1% of total paid up equity shares as well as 51% of NCDs/CCDs/Sponser sub debt efc,
Welspun India Limited, the holding company, has issued an irevocable and unconditional comporate
quarantee valid for the tenure of the foan.
Exim Bank Term Loan sanctioned of Rs 156 Cr - of which availed in USD $ 1,530,000 for the tenure of
the foan.
Less : Surrent maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 14 {b}) {265.63) (64.25)
Less ' Interest acerued but nct due [Rafer note 14 (b)] (1.57) (75.74)
Non-current borrowings {as per balance sheet} 6,846,29 8.313.64

Notes:

1. The average rate of Interest on the nen- current borrewings in the table above are in the range of 3.50% to 9.25% (For 2018-20: 8.15% to 9.90%). Loans menlicnad in the table above are eligibile

for State Government subsidy.

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs.in Miifion } {Rs.In Millien }
Note 11 (b) : Current Bemrowings

Amount Amount

[Secured, Measured at Amorlised Cost)
Working Capital Loan {Refer Note below] 35063 175.91
{Unsecured, Measured at Amorlised Cost)
Loan from Related Parties - 95.18
Current borrowings {as per batance shaet} 350.63 271.09

Notes : Werking capital loans which are primarily cash credit from HBFC banks and iDFC first bank, are secured by hypothacation of raw materials, stock-in-process, finished goods, semi finished
goads, stores, spares and baok debls and other current financial assets of the Company; second charge on entire fixed assals of the Company and corporate guarantee from Welspun India Limited

valid far the tenure of loan.
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Note 12 {a} : Non Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax

Note 12 (b} : Current Tax Liability
Provision for Income Tax

Note 12 (c): Deferred tax Liabilities {Net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred Tax Liabitities arising on account of temporary differences in :

- Property, plant, equipment and Intangible Assels

Deferred Tax Assets on Losses : i
- Unabsorbed business loss and Unabseorbed Depraciation

Net Deferred Tax liability

As At As At
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
{Rs. Million} {Rs. Million)
1.01 1.83
1.01 1.83
3.08 3.08
3.08 3.08
390.58 233.16
385,71 228.28
4.98 4,88

Since the Campany has continued losses in the current year the Deferred Tax assets on fosses have been restricted to the extent of

Deferred Tax Liabilities.

Particulars

Property, plant,
equipment and
Intangible Assets

March 31, 2019 4.88
{Charged}/ Credited :

to Statement of Profit and Loss -
to Other Comprehensive Income -
March 31, 2020 4.88

(Charged) [ Credited :
to Statement of Profitand Loss
to Other Comprehensive income

March 31, 2021
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Million)  {Rs. in Million)
Note 13 : Other non current liabilities
Deferred Income:
- TUF subsidy {Refer note below) 267.94 -
- Other gavernment grants (Refar note 37) 85,03 262.83
352.97 262,83

Note:

TUF subsidy relates to government grant for the purchase of properity, plant and equipment and are credited to statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the expected lives of {xe related assets. Other government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the

period necessary to match them with costs that they are intended fo compensate and presenled within other inceme.

Note 14 (a) : Trade payables

Totat Quistanding Dues of Micro Entreprises and Small Entreprises 62.47 61,19
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Entreprises and Small Entreprises
- Related Parties {Refer note 30) 444.90 212.03
= Others 8889.63 302,98
1,396.00 576.20
Note 14(b) : Other current financials liabilities
Creditors for Capital Purchases 204,10 298.82
Retention Money Payable 26.99 2773
Current maturities of Long Term Debt 265.63 64.25
{nterest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 1.57 75.74
Others 1.65 52.62
499.94 £19.16
MNote 15 : Current Employee obligations
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 21} 14.80 15.00
Provision for Compensated absenses 12.02 9.78
Employee benefits payable 86.54 0.45
113.46 25.23
Note 16 : Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customers “ 89.8%
Statufory Dues (Including tax deducted at source) 27.69 16.74
Deferred Income:
- TUF subsidy {Refer note below) 21.51 -
- Other government grants 219.80 -
269.10 106.55
Note:

TUF subsidy relates to government grant for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and are credited fo statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets. Other gavernment grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the

period necessary to maich them with costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Miflion}
Notfe 17 : Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products
Sale of Praducts - Finished Goods-Domestic 3,314.05 405.02
Sub Total 3,314.05 405.02
(b) Other Operating ncome
Sale of Scrap 35,12 11.11
Government Grant:
- SGST incentive 223.92 123.63
- Capital subsidy, reimbursement of land cost and stamp duty (Refer note 37) 21.44 12.44
- Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme 3.57 -
- Export Promotion Capital Goods {(EPCG) Scheme 31.53 -
Sub Total 315.58 147.18
Total 3,629.63 552,20
1) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from coniracts
with cusiomers:
Year ended Year ended
Revenue March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Miliion) {Rs. in Million)
India 3,349.17 416.13
Total revenue from contracts with customers
3,349.17 416.13
2} Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and
contract liabilities from contracts with customers
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million}
Trade receivables™ 850.62 -
Contract liabilities (advances from customers) - §59.81
*Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days.
3) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the staternent of profit and loss
with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Mitlion}
Revenue as per contracied price 3,349.17 416.13
Less: Rebates, discounts, chargebacks, markdowns, etc. - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 3,349.17 416,13




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED #arch 31, 2021

4) Reconciliation of revenue from operations with revenue from contracis
with customers

Year ended Year ended
X Karch 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Particulars {Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Mitlion)
Revenue from operations 3,629.63 552.20
Less: Government Grant 248,93 136.07
Revenue from contracts with customers 3,380.70 416.13
Note 18 : Other Income
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 0.83 0.45
Exchange Gain {(Net) 139.30 -
Miscelianeous 21.63 -
Total 161.76 0.45
Note 18 : Raw materials including packaging materials consumed
Opening Stock 343.93 -
Add: Purchases of Raw Material and Traded Goods 2,768.50 981.52
3,112.43 981.52
Less: Ciosing Stock 602,12 343,93
Total 2,510.31 637.59
Note 20 : Changes in inventeries of Stock-in-Trade
{Increase)f Decrease in Stocks
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 99.77 -
Work-in-Process 238,75 -
338.52 -
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 356.51 99.77
Work-in-Pracess 203.23 238.75
559.74 338.52
(increase) / decrease in Stocks (221.22) (3386.52)




WELSPUN FLOCRUGLIMITED

HGTES TO THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 24, 2021

Yaar zndad Yoarended
Mazrch 38,2024 March 31, 2020
Re, ittan] [Rs. Miilion)
Hole 21 : Emplayees bonefils expense
Salaries, Wages. Abowances and Other Benefits 51679 2402%
Gratuity 7AD 251
Contributian 1 Providen and Ciher Funds 2364 2314
Leave compensation 368 293
Sizif and Lobour Welar 1885 685
total 575.36 276,04

Tha figutes mentioned sbove am el off etployes (03ts capiiaised durdng the yaar ended March 3%, 2021 amaunting to Rs 34 62 Mition (Ramh 31,2020 Rs 185 50 Mizon)

The Company has classified the vaslous benefits provided to empleyess as under :-

Deflned Gantributon Plans

1z, Miton)
During the year, the Company has retttmised the folowing aneunts i the Statement of Yeat ecdod Year ohted
Protiand Less: Harch 31, 2021 Farch 31, 2020
+ Ervployers’ Coptrbution 1o Providant Fund® 15.65 1448
-~ Empioyers’ ContRniton 1o Empioyeos State Insurancs * 257 143
+ Natonal Pension Fund® 10.50 182
- S Conuibyion L ion Schema® 082 [ 1]
2964 21,14

* Included in Contributon t Provident and Other Funds
DCefinsd Benefit Plan

Contribition to Gratuity Fund (Funded Befined Benefit Plsn)

The Company operales a gratuily glan Loush the "Weispun Flocring Limiled Empicyees Gratuity Trust'. Every empioyee is entitled to a benefit equivaleat 19 filtean days salary
Iazt degwn for each completed year of service in fine with the Payment of Gratuity Azl 1572, Tha same Is payabie al the bme of separatan lrom e Company of felirement,

whichever is carker

Risk exposure

These defined bonefit plans expas? the Cempany to astuarid risk such as lonpitivity Asks. intefest e ivks, Markel (Rvestneat) risks.

a. Major Assumplons Asat As ot
March 31, 2021 March 34, 2028
% pa. % pa.
Diseount Rate 682 683
Ealary Ezcalation Rate @ 65%pa for the next 5 years, G.5%p.a for he nedd § yours,
5% p.a for thereafler, starting 5% p3 for therealiar, sianing
frem Bt year frem Eth yoar
Rala of Empiayea Tumever Fer servica 1 years ang below For service 2 years and below
12.00% pa. For senvice 2 yews 8% pa. Forsenico J yoars ta 4
12 4 years B.00% pa For yexs 6.00% p.a For senvise 5
setvita B years and abovo yewrs ond above4.00% pa.
400%pa.
Mertsity Rate Ouring Employment Indan Assured Lives Mortaity  indan Ansured Lives Martatly
(2005-08} UigEmats {2005-0B) Limale
@ The catreates (of future solary intreases concidered takes inta acoount tho infizson, seniorly, prometion and elher rigvant fagters,
b. Change in lha Present Vatue of CbEgation Agal Az at
Harch 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Oponing Preses Vale of Obigaton 1500 637
Cunent Sereice Cest 637 242
irtorest Cost 103 0.49
Total amound recogrised In profit or foss 740 2.91
Remeasuzements
[Gain}Loss frem changa in (0.09} .
(GanbLoss frem chango in financial assumations 0.88% 1231
Experionca Gemsfilesses) 4E5 (449}
Total amount recognlsed kn athor comprahansive incame 147 {6.72)
Liabty transtored out f divestmant {4.16)
Benafity Exgrata paid (181

Closing Prezant Valus of Obligation 1480 1500,




WELSPUN FLCORKGLIMITED

HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FUR THE YEAR ENDEDR MARCH 3% 2021

{Rs. Mie)
¢. Balanca Sheot Reconciliation As at As at
Mzrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening et {Lisbisty ) Assed (15.00) 647)
Exgenses Recognlzed in Statement of Protd or Loss {7.40} {281)
IncomedExpenses) recegnized in OCH 147 B
Employer's Cenlibution - -
LisbiEty ransterred cul / divestment 4.16 +
Benafiy Exgrata poid 187 -
Met {LiabEty) Assel Recognsed in the Batanca Shesl (1450 {15.00)
{Rs, MEHon}
d. Amount recegnised in the Balanze sheat Asal Asat
March 31, 2021 Mazrch 21, 2020
Presentvakia of Dbigation [14.50) {15.00}
Fas Viahuo of Plan Assets - -
Funded Status ((Surplus! (Defcit) {14.80} {15600
Expenss recognised in statement of prefitor bss - -
Het {Liabiity} Azsel Recognised in tha Baknice Sliect t14 80) 115,00
(Rs. MiZon]
e In the of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 3%, 2020
Cunment Service Cost 837 242
Past Servica Cost - -
Irterest Cost 103 043
Ieterest kicomse - -
Total r inthe of profitand loss* 140 A1)
® Instuded in Emgioyea Benefis Expense
{Rs. Meison)
£ Expenses ecagnized inthe Other Comprehensiva Income Yaar ended Yaoar anded
Harch 31, 2021 Harch 31, 2020
Re-ressurenent
Actunrial [Gaing)d 05505 0 Obligaton Fos tha yoar 347 {5.72)
Retum on Plan Assets, Exciedng amounts incheded o Interest ncame - -
Het {incomelExpences for tha Perics Recognized in OCI 147 1572)
{Rs. HiZan)
9. Senaitivity Analysis Year anded Yaar gadad
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Prejeciad Bengft Obigation on Cument Assumpliens 1450 15.00
Dea Elfest of +1% Changa in Rate of Discounting (1.23) {1.36)
Dexa Efest of 1% Ghanga in Rate of Disesuning 147 161
Dexs Efest of +$% Changs in Role of Sawry Increass 148 182
Detta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (125 {139)
Deita Effect of +1% Chaana ia Rate of Employee Turmcver 024 028
Dela Etfest of +4% Changa in Rate of Employee Tumower (020} {030}

The 2bova sensitwity analyses aro based en & change in en assumption whits holding all aiher ssumgtions CoABIAAL, In Pracice, s s urikely lo-occur. and changes in some of the assumplons may ba comelated, ¥/hen cakulating e
sensity of the defmed benefd chjgation to significant sciuanal assumpbons the same method (present valug of the ¢efined benefit ohligation caicuisted with the proycted unit credt method 81 the endiel tha reportng pariod) hizs been appted
26 vhen cakiulating the defined benefit fabitylzsset (ecagrised in the balanco shoel,

Themethads and types of assumpbons used in preparing the sensitvity analysis did nel change compared ta the prior period.
h. Defined benefit Bablity and emplayer contributions

The weighted averaga duraticn of the defined beneflit obgiion s 11 yosss (March 31, 2020 -12 years). The expected maturity analysis &f endiscountad grataity i a5 foliows:

{Rs_Mifeon}

Particulars Less Lhan aysar Balween 1-2yeads Behween 2 -5 Between 6«10 11 years and Total
yeas years ahova

#arch 31, 2021
Defined bonolit chination (gratuly) 178 130 273 B85 2241 3508
Totat 178 130 2,75 6.66 2241 35.08
March 3%, 2020
Defned banefit chicaton (orahity} 133 098 255 602 2518 w/a7
Tatal 138 956 2,55 .02 2516 3607

Il Cther Emplayee Banefit
Tvo gty for componsatod alsences 2 ol yeat ond &5 RS, 12.02 Mision (March 21, 2020° Rs, S8 Miie),




WELSPUN FLOORING LiMITEDR

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. in Million)  {Rs. In Million)
Note 22 ; Depreciation and amaortization expense

Depreciation an Tanglble Asssts (Refer Note 3) 505.33 22442
Amortisatian on intangible Assets {Refer Note 4) 7.97 3.57
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Neta 36} 3.82 3.06

517142 231.05

Wote 23 : Other Expenses

Power, Fuel and Water Charges 222.16 12508
Stores and spares consumead 142.54 11.68
Contract labour charges 75.08 17.59
Royalty Expenses T6.13 -
Travelling and Conveyance 67,70 7791
Legal and Professionat Charges 52.30 26,79
Repairs & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery 10.26 411
- Building 1.37 B
- Qthers 2.00 093
Insurance 20.18 5.88
Rent {Refer note 36) 2.68 0.09
Rates and Taxes 5.94 3.82
Security Expenses 7.25 525
Directors' Sitting Fees .28 0.08
Printing and Stationery G.56 6.51
Postage and Courier 1.00 417
Exchange Loss (Nel} - 54.94
Design and Development Expenses 20.39 2.83
Payments to Auditors (Refer Note 23 (a) below) 1.97 1.27
Miscellansous 74.30 44,27
784.04 387.20
Note 23 (a): Petails of Payments to Auditors
As Auditor 1.10 110
For Tax Audit Fees C.80 -
For Other Servicas 0.03 0.08
For Relmbursement of Expenses 0.04 0.09
1.97 1.27

Mote 24: Finance Cost

Interest on Term Loan 257.98 166.42
(Net of Interest Subsidy Rs 289,85 Milion (Previous Year Rs. 151.82 Million))

Commision on Corporale Guarantee 35.55 24.28
Interest to Others 16.00 -
Discounting and Bank Charges 50.29 42,87
Interest on lease lability 0.96 0.86

360.78 204,53




WELSPUN FLOORINGLIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Note 25: Income tax expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recogaised directly in equity and how the tax expense
is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items, It also expiains significant estimates made in relation to the Company's fax positions,

{a) Statement of Profit and Loss
{Rs. Million)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Gurrent Tax
Current Tax for the year
Total Current Tax Expense

Deferred Tax
Relating to originating and reversal of temporary differances
Total Deferred Tax Expense

Income Tax Expense

{b) Recencilition of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate

(Rs. Million)
Year Ended Yaar Ended
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Lass for the year before Income Tax Expense (735.00) (B45.24)
‘Tax at the Indian tax rate @ 25.17% (Previous Year : 25,17%) (185.00) (212,79)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {taxable} in calculating taxable income

Preoperative Expenses not allowable as deduction - -
Deffered tax assets not created 185.00 212,75
Others

Income tax Expenses
Deferred Tax assets amounting ta Rs. 397.75 Million {Rs. 212.75 Million) have not been created on losses.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 26 : Fair value measurements

Financiak instruments by category

{Rs. Millior}
March 31, 202¢ March 31, 2020
FYPL Fvoc] Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 850.62 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 120,96 - - a3
Bank Batances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 408,82 - - 2,53
Security deposils 26.96 - - 15.94
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.34 - - -
Government Grant Receivable 986.71 - - 451.50
Derivative Financial Insiruments 14.01 - - -
Total financial assets - 2,408.42 - - 473.29
Financial lizbilities
Barrowings and interes! accrued thereon 7.464.12 - - 6,724.72
Trade payables 1,386.00 - - 576.20
Leasa Liabifity 877 - - 861
Creditors for Capital Purchases 204.10 - . 298.82
Other financial liabilities 28.64 - - 40,35
Tatal financial Jiabilities - 9,098.63 - - 7,689.70
{i) Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cest
(Rs. Miltion)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Carrying Fair Value Carmrying Amount Fair Value
Amount
FInancial Assets
Trade Receivables 85062 850.62 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 120.98 120.96 3.32 3.32
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 408,82 408.82 253 253
Security deposits 26.96 26.96 15.94 15,84
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.34 0.34 - -
Government Grant Receivable 886.71 986,71 766.93 766.92
Derivative Financial Insiruments 14.01 1401 “ -
Total 2,408.42 2,408.42 788.72 788.72
Financial labilities
Borrowings and interest accrued thereon 7.464.12 7468412 6,724.72 B,724.72
Trate payables 1,386.00 1,386.00 576.20 576.20
Lease Lizbility 577 577 961 9.61
Creditars {or Capital Purchases 204.10 204.10 208,82 296.82
Qther financiai liabilities 28 64 2864 80,35 80.35
Totak 9,098.63 9,098.62 7,688.70 7,689.70

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, government grants including inferest subsidy and incentive, trade payable,
capital creditors and olher current financiat liabilities are cansidered to be approximately same as their fair value, due to their short-term nature and have been classified as levei 3

in the fair value hierarchy.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

{ii} Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpuls used in determining fair
value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. Million:
Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at
amartised cost for which fair values are disclosed Nates Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Trads Raceivables 850.62 856,62
Cash and cash equivalents 8{a) 120.86 120.96
Bank Balancas other than Cash and Cash Equivalenis 8(b) 408.82 408.82
Security deposits 26,96 26.86
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 5&8(c) 0.34 0.34
Government Grant Receivable 986.74 986.71
Derivative Financial Insirumenls 14.01 14.01
Total financial assets 2,408.42 2,408.42
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings and interest accrued thereon 11(a) & 14(b} 7.464.12 7.464.12
Trade payables 4(a) 1.396.80 1,396.00
L.ease Liability 38 577 577
Creditors for Capital Purchases 14(h) 204.90 204,10
Other financial iabilities 14(b) 28.64 28.64
Total financial liabilities 9,098 63 9,098.63

(Rs. hillion)

Finant_:ial assets and Iiahiliti.as which are r.neasured at Notes Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Laval 3 Total
amortised cost for which fair values are disclosad
At March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8(a} 3.32 3.32
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalenis B8(b) 2.53 253
Security deposils 5&8(c) 15,94 16.94
Govermnment Grant Receivable 1.082.38 1,082.36
Total financlal assets 1,104.15 1,104,145
Financlal Liabilities
Sorrowings and Interest accrued thereon 11(a) & 14(b) 6,724.72 §,724.72
Trade payables 14(a) 576.20 576.20/
Lease Liability 36 9.61 9.6%
Creditors for Capital Purchases 14{b) 258.82 208.82
Other financiaf liabilities 14{b) 80.35 80.35
Total financial liabitities 7,689.79 7,689.70

The above menticned grouping inta Level 1 to Levet 3, is described below.

Level 4: This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes lisled equity insiruments, exchange traded funds and mutual funds that have

quoted price. The fair value of alf equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporiing period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (such as traded bonds, debentures, government securilies and commercial papers} is
determined using Fixed income Money Market and Derivatives Assacialion of India (FIMMDA) inputs and valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If alt significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in leves 2. The mutual
funds are valued using the closing Net Assets Value (NAV). NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue furiber units and will redeem such units of mutua! fund to and

from the invesiors.

Leval 3: If one or mose of the significant inputs is not based on ohservable market data, the instrument is included in lavel 3. This is the case for unfisted preference shares and

secunty depasits inciuded in level 3.

There are no internal transfers of financiat assels and financial liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period. The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into

and transfers out of fair value hierarchy level as at the end of reporiing period.




WELSPUH FLOORING LIMITED
HOTES TO THE FRIANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED MARCH 31, 2021
Mata 27 < FinancTal Risk Ranagemant

Tiva Company's actvities are tposed to marked sk, fauidty Fsk and credit risk, In srder (5 minimisa any atversa effects on the francial performanco of tha Company. deduatve fnansisl instuments, such os foregn exchanga forward conracts af
enterod 1o hagga cesain foreig: y risk expesures s 2 tugively for hegging Purpesas e (0! a8 Fading of speculatve insiuments.

Risk Expasure arising from Wozsurement Manragament
Crod risk Cash  and  cash  cqunaiei.  UadelASemy amyss Divarzfieation of bank coposds. cred brits ond ieers of ecedd
fecstvables, et financial instumants,
financial assels messured at smortsed eost.
Tquidity rmk |Boiroenngs and oiher Eaviees Raling cosh fiw forecasts Aailzhity of commtind crend bnes and bextiwing facilies
Warkzi sk - [oeign Futara T hfior Senshivly srasss Forvaard Fareign Exchango Gonbreoi
exchanga Tirweiat  asses Lakijties  not
denominzted in indian Rupas (INR)
Markes tisk — intarest rate  [Leng-emm & vanobio Sensdaity An2e The Comgany achicves tha opimum itterest rate profis by benchmarking barrowing rmies thal
(== represent eeonemit vaishidies in whish the Company operates, Furlher, the Company &
eigibla for mterest subsidy of vpto B P, on the kem kaans. Addisonsty, company bas opted
Tor inderest rate swap Lo malch s receivable profie.

The Companys rick mansgement is canied out by 2 centeal lisasury department under pelickes aparoved by the Board of Direciors. Company's treasiay tsam identfies, evaluates and hedies financlal isks in cicse cosperation with the Company's
respestve depanment heads. The Board prevides witten prnc:ples lor overnil risk management, 53 well &5 poficies covenng speciic areas. such as forsgn exchinge ik, infrest rals risk, ciedit Ask, wse of dervative fnantid nstnaneats and non-
[ ! ard ¥ ity

(A) Crecit rizk
Credtiisk anises Hom Cash and cash equivalsnts, Investmants carmed at amaetised cost

g with banks and 5 wed 25 ool axposares. Including
{1} Cragit Risk Management

Credi risk s the fisk thal CuMepaty Wi A mest s ohigation under & fnantial Instrument o cuslomes contract, leading to @ Brancial loss. The Company |5 exposed to credzt fisk fram k3 linzncing actiites. including deposits with hank and
finar tareign exchang: .

Trado Receivablo
A per the Business Modsl, entire sales sre mads of Weispun Glotal Brands Limited (WGBL) a group Gompany
Tha fofiowing table gives detalis In reapest of porcentage of revenue genersied frgam g 100 120 Cuslomens.

Eariculsrs l For the year ghdad For the year ended
Mateh 33, 2034 Mazch 31, 2020
[Ravenua trom o 12 Customers | 100,00% 100.00%

As Bt March 31. 202%

Agelng of Treds receivables.
Gross Carying Amount

Less than 3 bfonths

3 manths to € months

Above & menths

Tred Rucenebies

BED.EZ

Expected loss rate

Micwance for doubtiol dets

Camyng srmount of Vade (etenaties (el of

850,62

BEDG2

As 21 March 31, 3020

[Rs, Miron)

Aeing of Trads recelvabies
Gross Carrying Amount

Less than 2 Months

3manthy 1o § months

Abgve 6 monthe

Total

Trade Recehztlos

Exgecied 155 e

Algwance far doubtiut dedls

oty enotnt of U0 1ESeranies (net of

Oiher fnantial asasts.

pary 1ot deposits vath banks,

{8} Llyuidity Risk
Liguidiy rick refers 4o he risk hat the Company wil enzounter difficully i meetng eolgations 1s5ociated win financial
acequste reserves, tanking lacites and rosesve bunovng [atillies. by cond ing borecast

Etion thal are seitied by detvoring cash or giher finantial a5 ets, The Company manapes Kaviey rsk by menlaning
and by matching the mausty :

() Financing arangements
The Comgpany i 6eets L tha fafening undrawn bomawing facitlies f the end of tha repering perod

(R hsSon}
Ax at #March 31, 2021 March 34, 2020
Floating rate
Expiring within ane yoar {packing creed, bark overdraft ang wher (ackies) [Furd taned] 149.37 32409
Expiting within ontr year (packing cre<i, bask tverdralt end ether faciifes) Nen- Fund based] 24381 -
Expiting within cne yeac (commament frem Helding Cempany} a2 56500
Espiriony vty yesar (Ve Lesana ) 1.48316 172441
Total 252435 3.013.20
Tho bark ovordrals faciies ey b0 Gravn &l any tma and may be teminatod by 4o bark wiiatt nebca.
(i) Matusidec of Financist Habilities
The tabikes botrw analyss tha Company's fnancial fabitins inta sekrant maturity groupings based on their contactus mitties for
- 2 non dervaive financial Esditios, and
- ned ard gross sotled dorivativa financialinstnaments fof véch tha et al for an f the tming of the cash fiows.

Tha amaunits disziosed in the e ore tha contractuid wrgintoynted cash fows,

As a1 March H, 202%

{Rs.. MizEon)
[Gontractual matariies of Anancial Rabiiles | Less than 3 Months | 3months to Gmonths | € months to § year | Betwesn 1 and 2 yeare |Dabwean 2and$ yesrs]  Bayand Syzar Tolal
Fon-derrvatives

Berrowings 548.00 19473 285,74 Bo227 347087 505570 | 10,29560
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 28 : Gapital Managament

Risk management

The Companys objectives when rmanaging capital is to safeguard conlinuity, maintain a strang credit rating and heallhy capitat raties in order to support its business and
provide adequale return to sharehalders through continuing grawth, The Gompany's overall sirategy remains unchanged from previous year.

The Company sels the amaount of capital required on the basis of annual business and fong-termn operaling plans which include capital investments.

The funding requirements are mat through a mixture of equily, intemal fund generation and other long term borowings. The Gompany's palicy is to use short-lerm and lang-term
barrowings lo meet anticlpaled funding requiraments.

‘The Campany menitors capital on the basls of the net debl to equity ratio, The Company ts not subject to any extemnally impased capital requirements.

Net debt are long term and shorl term debis as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents) ard shart-term investments,

‘The Company's stralegy is 1o maintain a gearing ratio within 3.1, The gearing ralios were as {ollows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Neon-current botrowings 6,846.28 6.313.64
Current maturities of Long term debt 26563 84.25
Current borrowings 350.63 271.0%
Less: cash and cash equivalent $120.96) {3.32)
Net debt 7,341.59 6.545.66
Total equity 4,343.67 2.295.46
iGearing ratio . 1.59 2,80

in arder to achieve tis overall objective, tha Campany's capitat management, amongst other things. aims o ensure that it mests financial covenants attached to the intarest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital strutture requiremants, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants. in cerfain cases, may permil the bank to immedialefy call
loans and borrewings, There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrawing in the curent peficd except for Dabt Service
Coverage Ralie (DSCR). Howavar, 1his non-compliance doesn't make the foan repayment on demand and there is no ather material impact on the credit facility.

No changes were made in lhe abjecii policies or pracesses for managing capital during 1he years ended 3% March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Note 29 : Estimation uncertainty ralating to the global health pandemic on COVID-1S

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Qrganizalion characterized the outbreak of the new caronavirus {"COVID-18%) as a pandemic, This outbreak of COVID-19 is causing
signifisant disturbanse and slowdown of economic aclivities gicbally and in india. The operations of the Company were impacted, due 1o shutdown of planis and officas
following lockdown as per direclives from the respeciive Governments, The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives from the Government, The
Company has adopted measures to curt the spread of infection in order to protect the heallh of its employaes and ensure business continuity with minimal diszuption inciuding
remale warking, maintaining soclal di ing, sanitization of work spaces elc.

The Management has prepared fulure cash fiow projections, assessed the recoverability of the Company's assels including annuat impairment assessment of its cash
generating units, using various intermnal and external infermation avallable as on the date of approval of these financial statements, and the Company expecls 1o recover the
carrying amoeunt of (hase assets, The impact of the global health pandemic may be ditferent from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Tmanciat slatemants and tha
Campany will cenlinue 1o closaly moniter any malerial changes 1o future economic conditions. .

Further, the Company has made detailed assessment of its liquiduty position (including servicing of debls) for next one year as the Company is in its initial stage of business
and has incutred a net cash loss during the current year. Basis assessment, the Company has concluded that the Company may need financial support and parent Company
has agreed 1o provide the same. Accordingly. the Gompany will be able to meet all its obligations for the next one year. Therefore, lhe financial statements are prepared on
going cencern basis.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Mote 30 : Related Party Disclosures

() Names of related parties and nature of refationships:

{a)Enterprise where contzol exists
Hoiding company Welspun India Limited (WL}

Ultimate parent Prasert Mulliventure Private Limited (till May 20, 2019)

Welspun Group Master Trust (WGMT) (with effect from May 21. 2019)

{b)Fellow subsidiary companywith whom transactions |Welspun Globat Brands Limited (WGBL)
have taken place during the year Welspun USA inc. {WLUISA)
Welspun Advanced Materials (India) Limited {(WAMIL)

{c)Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel  |Welspun Com Limited (WCL)

or relatives of such personnel exerclse significant AYM Syntex Limited (AYM}
infiuence or control and with whom transactions have jWelassure Private Limiled (WAL}
taken place during the year

Name Mature of relationship
{d)Key Management Personnel Rajesh Rameshkumar Mandawewala Birector
Dipali Goenka Direclor
Alal Jiwani Director
Devendra Patil Director
Sanjeev Sancheli Director w.e.f October 28, 2026
Mukesh Sawalani Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director {MS)
Shashikant Sshao Chief Financiat Officer tili June 18, 2020 (S5}
Pradeep Poddar Independent Director (PP)
Shashikant Thorat Company Secretary
Chirag Goanka Chief Financial Officer w.e.f, June 25, 2020

{iY Terms and Conditions
- All transactions with refated parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting outstanding balances are to settied In cash,
= All outstanding balances are unsecured.
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 31: Contingent Liability

"There are numerous interpratative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated February 28 , 2019, As a matter of caution,
the company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The company will update its provision, on receiving

further clarity on the subject.

Note 32; Capital and Other Commitment

Estimated value of Contracts in Capital Account remaining to be Executed (Net of Capital
Advance)

Export obligation under Zere duty EPCG Scheme. Duty saved March 31, 2021 Rs. 1,256.85
Million (Previous year : Rs. 1,043.76 Million)

Total

Note 33 : Earning per Share

Loss after Tax (A}

Waeighted average number of Equity Shares and Mandatorily Convertible Preference Shares
and Debentures cutstanding during the Year (B)

Mumber of Shares for Diluted Earnings Per Share {C)

Basic Earning per Share (A/ B}

Biluted Earning per Share {A/ C)
Nominal Value of Equity Share (Rs.)

Note 34: Disclosure for Micro and Small Enterprises:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. Million ) {Rs. Million }
920.38 607.20
7,703.79 6,262.57
§,624.15 6,869.77
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. Million ) (Rs. Million )
(735.00) (845.24)
416,430,588 104,329,918
416,430,589 104,329,918
{1.76} (8.10}
(1.786) {8.10)
10 10

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of year

-Principal

52.47

61.18

-interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 aleng with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

-Principal

-Interest

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

has been paid beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year

The above information and that given in Note 14 (a) - “Trade Payable” regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined fo the extent

such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Note 35; Details of Research and Development expenses incurred during the year

Capital Expenses

Employee Benefit Expenses *
Other Expenses *

Total

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs.in Million } {Rs.in Million )

- 91.44
15.88 37.31
- 9.80
15.88 138.55

*Includes other direct costs like employee benefit expenses and others of Rs r\ilL {2019-20: Rs 16.97 Mtllien)‘ capitalised during the year in.

accordance with Indian accounting Standard,




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 36: Lease as lessee

The Company has lease confracts for various items of other equipment used in its operations. Leases of other equipment
generally have lease terms between 3 and 4 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title
to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are several
lease contracts that include extension and termination options.

The Company also has cerain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low value. The Company applies
the ‘shori-term lease' and lease of low value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements duting the year:

{Rs. Million)
Particulars Right of use of assets
As at April 1, 2019 4.44
Lease adjustments 2.25
Additions 5.83
Depreciaticn expense {3.06)
As at April 1, 2020 89.46
Lease adjustments -
Additions -
Depreciation expense (3.82)
As at March 31, 2021 5.64
set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
{Rs. Million}
Particulars Total
As at April 1, 2019 4.44
Accretion of inferest 0.96
Lease adjustments 2.25
Additions 5.83
Paymenis (3.88)
As at April 1, 2020 9.60
Accretion of interest 0.96
Lease adjusiments -
Additions -
Payments (4.79)
As at March 31, 2021 5.77
Current lease liabilities 3.07
Non-Current lease liabilifies 2.70
The following are the amounts recognized in statement of profit and lass:
{Rs. Million}
Particulars 202021 2019-20
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assefs 3.82 3.06
Interest expense on [ease liabilities 0.96 0.96
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 2.66 224
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 4.78 6.26

Consigering the lease term of the laases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%

The Company had total cash outflows for ieases of Rs, 7.45 Million for current year (Rs. 6.12 Million for previous year). There
are no future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced.

The Company has several leass contracts that include extension and termination options, These options are negoliated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased- asset portfolio and align with the Company's business needs.

Management exercises significant judgment in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably
certain to be exercised. ' ) )




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 37 : During the current year, the Company has revisited the accounting of the Government Grant receivable and corresponding deferred income, in
respect of one-time capital subsidy, reimbursement of fand cost and stamp duty. Accordingly, the Company has re-measured the said subsidy as per the
amounts sanctioned by the authorities as against the claim made by the Company. Pursuant to abave, the Company in accordance with Ind AS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', has restated the amounts of 'non-current financial assets’ and "other non-current
liabilities’ in the comparative financial statemenis presenied for the year ended March 31, 2020. The summary of the restatement is as below:

As at March 31, 2020

{Rs. Millions}
Particulars Reported Amount Restatements Restated Amount
Government Grant Receivable- Telangana Capital Subsidy Receivable 1,098.30 {1,085.86) 12.44
Other non-current financial assets 1,098.30 (1,085.86) 12.44
Total non-current assets 10,155.09 {1,085.86) 9,069.23
Total assets 11,473.29 {1,085.86) 10,387.43
Other government granis 1,348.69 (1,085.86) 262.83
Other non-current liabilities 1,348.69 {1,085.86) 262,83
Total non-current liabilities 7,672.98 {1,085.86) 6,687.12
Total liabitities 9,178.13 {1,085.86} 8,092.27
Total equity and liabilities 11,473.29 (2,085.86) 10,387,43

However, the said restatement has no impact on the loss, income tax and shareholder's fund for the year ended March 31, 2020. Further, there is no

impact on the financial statements as at April 2019,

Note 38: Standards issued but not effective upto the date of Financial Statements
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

Note 38 : Re-grouping and Re-classification of previous year figures
The figures for the previous year are re-arranged/ re-grouped, wherever necessary.
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